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Company Profile

United Projects for Aviation Services Co. (UPAC), is a leading full-service commercial real estate development and
facilities management company, operating in Kuwait since 2000. UPAC is publicly traded on Boursa Kuwait, and is one of
Agility’s infrastructure companies, a global leading logistics provider and the largest logistics company in the Middle East.
The company focuses its efforts on the investment and management of real estate and other large key projects
within Kuwait, with a specialization in Build Operate Transfer (BOT) initiatives. UPAC’s core services include real estate
management, project management and consultancy, as well as maintenance and facilities management services. UPAC’s
customer base includes a wide range of leading retailers, food and beverage companies, airline companies and financial
institutions.
In 2015, UPAC signed an agreement to partner in the development of Abu Dhabi’s Reem Mall, a $1.2 billion mega mall
covering 2.9 million square feet, set out to become a major retail, leisure, and entertainment destination once completed.
Development of Reem Mall is well underway with construction moving swiftly, following the appointment of the main
contractor last year.

UPAC’s key projects include:
Kuwait International Airport
UPAC manages 10,000 sqm of commercial space at the airport, in addition to the provision of maintenance and facilities
management services. The 24/7 operation includes the management of over 200 retail units covering restaurants,
telecom operators, banks, car rental companies amongst others. Under its management are two check-in zones with
a total of 64 counters, as well as a multi-story parking facility accommodating 1,500 vehicles in the short-term car park
and 700 vehicles in the long-term car park.
Sheikh Saad Terminal
UPAC manages over 2,000 sqm of commercial space inside the airport’s terminal that includes a variety of restaurants,
coffee shops, business center and offices. In addition, the company provides end to end maintenance and facilities
management services within the terminal, including the supervision of the car parks and other related facilities.
Discovery Mall
Discovery Mall offers a host of educational, cultural, and entertainment activities that are geared towards children and the
youth segment in Kuwait. UPAC manages the commercial retail space within the mall and currently maintains an almost
100% occupancy rate.
Reem Mall
Reem Mall is an upcoming retail, leisure, dining and entertainment destination in Abu Dhabi, comprised of 450 stores and
food and beverage outlets, spread over 2.9 million square feet in the Najmat District of Reem Island. The mall will offer a
wide range of education attractions and family-focused entertainment such as Snow Park Abu Dhabi.
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Board of Directors

Tarek Al Mousa

Chairman of the Board of Directors
Member of the Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (BNRC)
As Chairman, Tarek Al Mousa provides leadership to the Board of Directors and
acts as a direct liaison between the board and executive management. He also
oversees the company’s corporate governance program and aims to protect
the interests of investors and stakeholders. In addition, Tarek is also the Vice
Chairperson and CEO of the Metal and Recycling Company (MRC). MRC is
a waste management company offering the latest practical and cost effective
solutions to manage the complexities of responsible waste management. Tarek
also managed several executive positions within Agility, last serving as the
Executive Director of Strategic Programs. Tarek holds a bachelor’s degree in
Mass Media and Sociology from the University of Evansville, Indiana.

Nadia Akil

Vice Chairperson and CEO
Member of the Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (BNRC)
Nadia Akil is the Vice Chairperson and CEO of UPAC, and is responsible for
the overall operations of UPAC. In her leadership role she has revitalized the
company’s internal structure and functional operations by driving business
development initiatives and overseeing shared services, such as finance, human
resources, information technology and marketing. She joined UPAC in 2012
after holding various senior positions within Agility’s Investments Group and
Corporate Development team. She also currently serves as Vice Chairperson of
UPAC’s subsidiary, Royal Aviation.Nadia holds a master’s degree from Columbia
University’s School of International and Public Affairs with a concentration in
finance and business, and a bachelor’s degree from Georgetown University in
Washington, D.C. Nadia is also a member of the Young Presidents’ Organization
(YPO) Kuwait Chapter.

Hasan El Houry

Non-Executive Board Member
Chairman of the Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC)
Hassan El Houry is currently the Chairman of the Board of Directors of National
Real Estate Company (NREC) and Royal Aviation (UPAC subsidiary). He is also
the Group CEO of National Aviation Services (NAS), the fastest growing aviation
services provider in the Middle East, Africa and South Asia. In 2014, Hassan El
Houry was honored by the World Economic Forum in Davos as a Young Global
Leader given his experience and contributions in the field of aviation and airport
services. Hassan is also a member in the Young Presidents’ Organization (YPO)
and serves as the director in the Wharton Alumni Club in the Middle East.
He holds a Master’s of Business Administration (MBA) from the University of
Pennsylvania’s Wharton School of Business and a bachelor’s degree from the
American University of Beirut.

4

Annual Report 2017

Zuhair Al Zamel

Non-Executive and Independent Member
Member of the Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC)
Chairperson of the Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (BNRC)
Zuhair Al Zamel has been a member of UPAC’S Board of Directors since 2008.
He held various positions with the Directorate General of Civil Aviation (DGCA)
for over 30 years, and most recently as Vice General Director of Civil Aviation
for Airport Affairs. He also served as a Consultant for National Aviation Services
(NAS) from 2009 until 2015. Zuhair graduated from the University of California,
Santa Barbara (UCSB) with a bachelor’s degree in Electrical Engineering.

Majed Al Ajeel

Non-Executive Member
Member of the Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC)
Majed Al Ajeel is the Chairperson of Burgan Bank and has held this position since
2010. He also serves as the Chairperson of the Kuwait Banking Association and
prior to 2012, held the position of Vice Chairperson and CEO of UPAC. Majed
holds both a bachelor’s and a master’s degree from the Catholic University of
America.
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Vice Chairperson and CEO Message

Dear Shareholders,
On behalf of the Board of Directors, it is my great pleasure to welcome you to UPAC’s 17th annual general assembly and
to present the Company’s 2017 Annual Report, detailing our financial performance and various other accomplishments
achieved during the year ending December 31, 2017.
We have witnessed significant milestones over the course of the year, primarily driven by the developments taking place
within Abu Dhabi’s Reem Mall as well as other improvements within its various projects in Kuwait. We have continued
to enhance our existing operations at the Kuwait International Airport, the Sheikh Saad Terminal, and Discovery Mall,
where UPAC manages over 24,000 sqm of commercial space and is currently operating at full capacity. We take great
pride in our valuable customers and continue to build this base to further enhance the company’s status as a leading real
estate and facilities management provider in the region. Our strategy has been to continue to expand our foot print in the
region’s commercial real estate market, with Reem Mall as the stepping stone in that arena.
The Company continues to improve its solid financial performance year over year, contributing to an overall consistent
and positive track record. In 2017, UPAC recorded earnings of KD 9.64 million, equivalent to 121 fils per share for the
full-year 2017, an increase of 14.23% over the previous year 2016. UPAC’s revenues increased by 5.83% in 2017 to
KD 13.99 million, compared with KD 13.22 million in 2016. Our continued stable performance reflects the company’s
commitment to its shareholders and towards its business.

Board of Directors
In light of UPAC’s strong performance, the Board of Directors is proposing to the Annual General Assembly of the
shareholders a cash dividend distribution of 121% (121 fils per share), subject to the shareholders’ final approval.
In 2017, the Company increased its capital from KD 8.25 million to KD 10 million, by issuing 17.5 million bonus shares,
equivalent to 21.21% of the company’s capital in order to comply with regulatory capital requirements, and following
shareholders’ approval.
On 22 November 2017, the Board of Directors elected Tarek Al- Moussa as Chairman, following Hassan El Houry’s
resignation. El Houry retains his membership as a non-executive member on the board.

Reem Mall
I am proud to share that development of Reem Mall is well underway; following the successful completion of the financing
of the $1.2 billion project by the consortium partners backing the project, including UPAC, Agility and the National Real
Estate Company (NREC). As of January 2017, the partners successfully fulfilled the final conditions for the financing of
the project, including the completion of land title issuance through the relevant land authority in the Emirate of Abu Dhabi.
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Construction is progressing following the appointment of Itinera Ghantoot JV as the lead contractor for the project in
November 2017. Itinera Ghantoot JV is a joint venture between Itinera, one of Italy’s largest construction companies, and
Ghantoot, one of the UAE’s leading builders.
UPAC will invest up to $415 million to support funding into the project and in support of this funding the Company has
signed a five-year KD 50.1 million ($165 million) loan facility agreement with two of Kuwait’s strongest commercial banks,
Gulf Bank Kuwait and Ahli Bank of Kuwait (ABK).
Reem Mall will be a major retail, leisure and entertainment destination covering 2.9 million square feet. Reem Mall will
feature Majid Al Futtaim Ventures’ range of world class entertainment offerings as part of landmark collaboration including
Snow Park Abu Dhabi - the region’s first standalone, themed indoor snow park. In addition, prominent retail groups such
as Azadea Group, Landmark, Dubai Holding Group and others have committed to Reem Mall.

Corporate Governance
We are committed to uphold the rules of transparency and responsible management in order to protect our shareholders’
rights and in compliance with the regulations set by the Capital Markets Authority. Enclosed is the Company’s second
published Corporate Governance Report, outlining the various activities and committees in line with the corporate
governance framework.

Corporate Social Responsibility
As part of our corporate social responsibility (CSR) program, we have continued to uphold UPAC’s commitment to the
community and continue to contribute to these efforts through various initiatives led by the company and its volunteers.
Amongst the initiatives UPAC supported during 2017 was donating medical items to the NBK Children Hospital for
Hematology and Oncology, organizing a blood donation in collaboration with the Kuwait Central Blood Bank, supporting
Syrian refugees through United Nations High Commissioner for Refugees, upskilling students through INJAZ Kuwait,
supporting underprivileged families in Kuwait through the Kuwait Red Crescent Society, amongst other initiatives.
I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks and appreciation for your continued support and
contributions that enabled the Company to meet its goals and targets for the year.
I would also like to extend my sincere appreciation to our Shareholders, Board of Directors, and the Capital Markets
Authority for their ongoing support throughout the year.

Nadia Akil
Vice Chairperson and CEO
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Consolidated Financial Statements

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(KD Mln)

Revenues

(KD Mln)

EBITDA

(KD Mln)

Net Profit

Total Assets

,
Shareholder s equity

EPS

(KD Mln)
(KD Mln)
(Fils)

2017

12.75

13.22

13.99

9.32

9.79

9.87

6.78

8.42

9.68

40.12

43.45

53.16

27.84

29.53

38.84

70.95

88.71

101.33

5.83%

14.92%
9.68

2017

8.42

2016

10

2016

Revenue (KD Mln)

Net Profit (KD Mln)

2015

2015

6.78

2017

13.99

2016

13.22

2015

12.75
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EBITDA (KD Mln)

EPS (Fils)

2017

9.87

2017

2016

9.79

2016

9.32

2015

53.16

2017

2015

88.71
70.95

,
Shareholder s Equity (KD Mln)

Total Assets (KD Mln)

2016

2015

101.33

43.45
40.12

38.84

2017
2016
2015

29.53
27.84
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Corporate Social Responsibility

UPAC’s corporate social responsibility (CSR) program is an important part of our commitment to act ethically and
sustainably. We continue to develop UPAC’s CSR framework, focusing mainly on environmental and educational
programs, as well as on supporting local and international charitable initiatives.
In 2017, our employees participated in various fundraising drives, donated time and money, and sponsored initiatives
across to support families and communities, both locally and internationally.

“Go-Green” Program
UPAC launched its ‘Go-Green’ program in 2014 and
has since developed the scope of its environmental
awareness program. The company’s newly renovated
and eco-friendly offices continue to participate in a
weekly ongoing recycling program, which over the
past year resulted in the collection of more than 265
kilograms of plastic and 2,300 kilograms of paper and
carton materials. UPAC continues to partake in other
environmental initiatives such as Earth Day activities
and internal programs geared towards a cleaner
environment.
Donations to Syrian Refugees
UPAC completed a corporate fundraising initiative in
partnership with Agility to support the United Nations
High Commissioner for Refugees (UNHCR). Both
companies committed to matching donations raised
by its employees. The proceeds from this project
were applied towards a cash transfer program for
Syrian refugees living in Jordan. Over 2017 and 2018,
the project has helped more than 480 Syrian refugee
families – approximately 2,400 people.

Injaz Program
Given the importance of education for UPAC, the
company participated in an entrepreneurship master
class program organized by INJAZ. UPAC’s employees
contributed in developing the training materials and
preparation of business cases that were presented to
the students of Al-Jeel Al-Jadeed Private School. INJAZ
is a non-profit (NPO), non-governmental organization
(NGO) driven by Kuwait’s private sector. The organization
focuses on delivering various educational programs to
enhance entrepreneurship and leadership skills amongst
younger generations.
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Blood Donation Campaign In Collaboration with
the Kuwait Central Blood Bank
A blood donation campaign called “Blood is Life” was
organized by UPAC in collaboration with Kuwait Central
Blood Bank. The campaign took place at Discovery
Mall, one of the company’s managed facilities. A total of
8.5 liters of blood were donated to the Kuwait Central
Blood Bank.

Donation to National Bank of Kuwait Hospital
UPAC donated tailor-made medical gowns and childfriendly medical dispensers to the NBK Children
Hospital for Hematology and Oncology. The donated
gowns and dispensers benefited an estimated 150
children.

UPAC Supports KRCS’s “Give Them a Chance”
Campaign
In support of the local community and to those in need,
UPAC joined forces with the Kuwait Red Crescent
Society (KRCS) for the “Give Them a Chance”
campaign. The campaign raised money to support
underprivileged families in Kuwait, and in particular,
children’s educational needs. Funds donated by
UPAC’s employees were matched by the company,
dollar for dollar.

Ramadan Food Truck at Discovery Mall
In collaboration with Agility and other Infrastructure
companies, UPAC organized a food truck program
offering complimentary Iftar meals to during the Holy
month of Ramadan. The program kicked off on the first
day of Ramadan at Discovery Mall and continued for the
duration of the Holy month. The food truck distributed
300 Iftar meals daily, for a total of 9,000 meals by the
end of Ramadan.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION
United Projects for Aviation Services Company KSCP («UPAC») is committed to implementing the rules of governance
in accordance with the laws and regulations of the regulatory bodies, in particular Book 15 (Corporate Governance) of
Decree No. (72) for the year 2015 on the issuance of Law No. 7 of the year 2010 on the establishment of the Capital
Markets Authority (CMA) and the regulation of securities activity and their amendments. The implementation of the
Corporate Governance Framework is a fundamental part of ensuring the overall success of the Company.
The Company believes that practices managed within the framework of governance are the basis for achieving the
Company›s main objectives, creating sustainable values, enhancing the role of internal control, and activating the integrity
and transparency of the work. In doing so, («UPAC») ensures that governance framework meets the relevant regulatory
requirements set by the CMA and maintains trust amongst shareholders and stakeholders alike.
In the performance of its functions, the Board of Directors supports a number of different committees: the Risk Committee,
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and Nominations Committee, as well as the executive management.

18

Annual Report 2017

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Pillar 1: Construct a Balanced Board Composition
1.1 Overview of the Board of Directors
1.2 Overview of the Meetings of the Board of Directors
1.3 Overview of the Methodology Used to Register, Maintain and Coordinate Board of Directors’ Minutes of Meeting
Pillar 2: Establishing Clear Roles and Responsibilities
2.1 Duties and Responsibilities of the Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management
2.2 Board of Directors’ Achievements During the Year
2.3 Overview of the Board of Directors’ Requirements to Form Specialized Independent Committees
2.4 Methodology of Providing Members of the Board of Directors with Accurate and Timely Information and Data
Pillar 3: Selection of Qualified Candidates for the Board of Directors and Executive Management
3.1 Overview of the Application of Requirements for the Formation of the Board Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (BNRC)
3.2 Report on the Board of Directors’ and Executive Management Remuneration
Pillar 4: Ensure the Integrity of Financial Reporting
4.1 Written Undertakings of Board of Directors and Executive Management as to the Soundness and Integrity of Financial
Reportings
4.2 Overview of the Board Audit Committee
4.3 Overview of the Recommendations of the Board Audit Committee and Resolutions of the Board of Directors
4.4 Safeguarding the Independence and Impartiality of the External Auditor
Pillar 5: Applying Sound Systems of Risk Management and Internal Audit
5.1 Establish an Independent Unit for Risk Management
5.2 Overview of the Board Risk Management Committee
5.3 Overview of the Internal Audit Systems and Controls
5.4 Overview of the Independent Unit for Internal Audit and Controls
Pillar 6: Promote Code of Conduct and Ethical Standards
6.1 Overview of the Code of Conduct and Business Ethics
6.2 Overview of the Policies Used to Mitigate Conflicts of Interest
Pillar 7: Ensure Timely and High Quality Disclosures
7.1 Overview of Accurate and Transparent Disclosures
7.2 Overview of Disclosure Records for Members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management
7.3 Summary of Requirements for the Formation of an Investor Relations Unit
7.4 Development of a Solid Information Technology Framework to Support the Disclosure Process
Pillar 8: Protection of Shareholders’ Rights
8.1 Summary of the Requirements for the Protection of Shareholders’ Rights and to Ensuring Fairness and Equality
Amongst All Shareholders’
8.2 Summary of the Formation of a Special Register to be Maintained with the Clearing Agency and In-line with the
Requirements for Continuous Updates to Shareholders’ Information
8.3 Overview of Shareholders’ Incentives to Participate and Vote in the Company’s General Assemblies
Pillar 9: Recognize the Roles of Stakeholders
9.1 Overview of the Systems and Policies Used to Ensure the Protection and Recognition of Stakeholders’ Rights
9.2 Overview of the Stakeholders’ Incentives to Participate in Tracking the Various Activities of the Company
Pillar 10: Encourage and Enhance Performance Improvement
10.1 Implement Policies that Allow Board Members and Executive Members to Obtain Continuous Training Programs
10.2 Overview of the Evaluation of Board Members and Executive Management Against a Set of Agreed Performance
Indicators
10.3 Overview on the Board of Directors’ Effort Towards “Value Creation” for Employees Within the Company Through
Fulfillment of Strategic Objectives and Performance Improvement
Pillar 11: Importance of Corporate Social Responsibility
11.1 Overview of Development of a Policy Ensuring a Balance Between the Objectives of the Company and of Society
11.2 Overview of the Mechanisms Used to Highlight the Company’s Efforts within Corporate Social Responsibility

20
20
21
22
22
22
23
23
26
27
27
27
27
27
27
28
28
28
28
28
28
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
29
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
30
31
31
31
31
31
31
31

19

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

PILLAR 1: CONSTRUCT A BALANCED BOARD COMPOSITION
1.1 OVERVIEW OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
United Projects for Aviation Services Company’s KSCP (“UPAC” or “Company”) Board of Directors is comprised of
five members, all of whom have been elected in line with the applicable provisions of the Company’s Memorandum
of Association and the Articles of Association of the company. They hold the relevant educational qualifications and
professional experience to carry out their responsibilities dutifully and professionally, in addition to being well versed
with the relevant corporate laws and regulations. The formation of the relevant Board Committees ensures that the
composition of each Committee accurately reflects the experience and educational qualifications of each member
matched to the allocated tasks and responsibilities of each Committee.
Name

Capacity

Board Member
Classification

Date Elected

Tarek Al-Mousa

Chairman

Non-Executive Member

May 2015

Vice Chairperson

Executive Member

May 2015

Zuhair Al-Zamel

Board Member

Independent Member

May 2015

Majed Al-Ajeel

Board Member

Non-Executive Member

May 2015

Hassan El-Houry

Board Member

Non-Executive Member

May 2015

Nadia Akil

The Secretary of the Board of Directors has been appointed to carry out their set roles and responsibilities.

Educational Qualifications and Experience of the Board of Directors

Name
1
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TAREK AL-MOUSA
Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Educational
Qualifications
Bachelor’s degree in Mass
Media and Sociology from
the University of Evansville,
Indiana.

Experience
As Chairman, Tarek Al Mousa provides leadership to the
Board of Directors and acts as a direct liaison between
the board and executive management. He also oversees
the company’s corporate governance program and aims
to protect the interests of investors and stakeholders.
In addition, Tarek is also the Vice Chairperson and CEO
of the Metal and Recycling Company (MRC). MRC is a
waste management company offering the latest practical
and cost effective solutions to manage the complexities
of responsible waste management. Tarek also managed
several executive positions within Agility, last serving as
the Executive Director of Strategic Programs.
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2

NADIA AKIL
Vice Chairperson of the
Board of Directors

Master’s degree from New
York’s Columbia University
School of International
and Public Affairs, with a
concentration in Business
and Finance, and a bachelor’s
degree in International Affairs
from Georgetown University
in Washington D.C.

Nadia Akil is the Vice Chairperson and CEO of UPAC.
Since being appointed Chairperson and CEO in 2012
she has been responsible for the overall operations of
UPAC in Kuwait, including three BOT contracts that
encompass over 24,000 sqm of commercial and retail
space in prominent locations across the country. In
her leadership role she has revitalized the company’s
internal structure and functional operations by driving
business development initiatives and overseeing shared
services, such as finance, human resources, information
technology and marketing. Previously, Akil held positions
of increasing responsibility at Agility. Most recently she
served as a Director on Agility’s Executive Projects Team.
In this role she concentrated on identifying growth areas,
business development opportunities and operational
efficiencies. Earlier, she managed mergers and
acquisitions within Agility’s Investment Group. Prior to
Agility, Akil was in the Global Wealth Management Group
at Citigroup in London, where she managed over 20
private client portfolios and developed product strategy.

3

ZUHAIR AL-ZAMEL
Independent Member

Bachelor’s degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University
of California at Santa Barbara
(UCSB) 1974.

Zuhair Al Zamel has been a member of UPAC’S Board
of Directors since 2008. He held various positions with
the Directorate General of Civil Aviation (DGCA) for over
30 years, and most recently as Vice General Director
of Civil Aviation for Airport Affairs. He also served as a
Consultant for National Aviation Services (NAS) from
2009 until 2015.
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MAJED AL-AJEEL
Non-Executive Member

Master's degree in planning
and a bachelor's degree in
architecture from the Catholic
University of America.

Majed Al Ajeel is the Chairman of Burgan Bank and
has held this position since 2010. He also serves as
the Chairperson of the Kuwait Banking Association,
and previously held leading positions such as Vice
Chairperson and CEO of UPAC, and a member of the
Board of Directors of several companies.
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HASSAN EL-HOURY
Non-Executive Member

Masters
of
Business
Administration
(MBA)
from the University of
Pennsylvania’s
Wharton
School of Business and a
bachelor’s degree from the
American University of Beirut.

Hassan El Houry is currently the Chairman of the Board
of Directors of National Real Estate Company (NREC) and
Royal Aviation (UPAC subsidiary). He is also the Group CEO
of National Aviation Services (NAS), the fastest growing
aviation services provider in the Middle East, Africa and
South Asia. In 2014, Hassan El Houry was honored by
the World Economic Forum in Davos as a Young Global
Leader given his experience and contributions in the field
of aviation and airport services. Hassan is also a member
in the Young Presidents’ Organization (YPO) and serves as
the director in the Wharton Alumni Club in the Middle East.

1.2 OVERVIEW OF THE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board of Directors held a total of eight meetings during the course of 2017. All meetings are called for by way of a
formal invitation in advance, in order to allow adequate time for members’ to attend. Each time a meeting is called for,
a formal agenda is shared with members along with all necessary supporting documents prior to the meeting to allow
members sufficient time to review. Board meetings are held when a quorum is met, with at least three members present,
otherwise the meeting may be adjourned until a legal quorum is met. The Board Secretary ensures that minutes are
recorded and formally signed off by members once they are in agreement. Board meetings are always conducted in
line with the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association as well as in conformity to the Company’s laws and
executive regulations.
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Meeting No. 03/17 held
on 07 May 2017

Meeting No. 04/17 held
on 08 June 2017

Meeting No. 05/17 held
on 26 July 2017

Meeting No. 06/17 held
on 08 November 2017

Meeting No. 07/17 held
on 22 November 2017

Meeting No. 08/17 held
on 18 December 2017

Number of the
attended meetings

Tarek Al-Mousa
Chairman of the Board of Directors
Nadia Akil
Vice Chairperson and CEO
Zuhair Al-Zamel
Board Member (Independent)
Majed Al-Ajeel
Board Member
Hassan El-Houry
Board Member
√ Attendance

Meeting No. 02/17 held
on 12 March 2017

Name & Capacity

Meeting No. 01/17 held
on 03 January 2017

Board of Directors’ Meetings during the year 2017

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

8/8

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

8/8

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

8/8

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

8/8

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

√

8/8

1.3 OVERVIEW OF THE METHODOLOGY USED TO REGISTER, MAINTAIN AND COORDINATE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS’ MINUTES OF MEETINGS
Minutes of meetings are organized and recorded within a company register with applicable serial numbers to mark those
meetings during the year. Each meeting records specified relevant details such as the date of the meeting, start and
end times, discussion items, deliberations and voting processes on the proposed agenda items. The Board Secretary
is responsible for maintaining and updating the Company register in accordance with all relevant Board documentation.
The tasks and responsibilities of the Board Secretary are ultimately approved by the Board of Directors.

PILLAR 2: ESTABLISHING CLEAR ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES
2.1 OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY’S METHODOLOGY IN IDENTIFYING DUTIES AND RESPONSIBILITIES OF
THE MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
In line with the provisions of the Corporate Governance Regulations (including Book 15 of the CMA Executive
Regulations- Corporate Governance), the Company has set out in detail the roles and responsibilities governing the
conduct of members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management. In addition to this, the Board of Directors
has implemented formal documentation to clearly set out in detail those powers granted to Executive Management, and
ultimately delegated by the Board of Directors. Below is a list of some of the specific roles and responsibilities allocated
to members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management:
Roles and Responsibilities - Board of Directors:
• Approve strategic objectives and material plans and policies of the Company.
• Approve annual estimated budgets and interim and annual financial statements.
• Monitor the basic capital expenditures of the Company, ownership and disposal of assets.
• Follow up the performance of the company through the meetings of the Board of Directors and follow up the results
of the committees.
• Setting performance goals and monitoring implementation and overall performance in the Company.
• Ensure accuracy and soundness of data and information for disclosure in line with applicable disclosure and
transparency policies and regulations.
• Establish effective channels of communication that allow the shareholders of the Company to have regular and
periodic access to the Company’s financial reports and periodic disclosures.
• Verify the Company’s compliance with policies and procedures to guarantee its respect of applicable internal bylaws
and regulations.
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Develop and supervise a corporate governance system and monitor its effectiveness.
Follow-up performance of each member of the Board of Directors and Executive Management according to key
performance indicators (KPIs)
Formation of the Board Committees amongst the existing Board members and in accordance with a Board Charter:
setting out the Committee’s clear roles and responsibilities, and the methodology of supervision by the Board of
Directors.
Ensuring that the policies and regulations adopted by the company are transparent and clear, allowing for decision
making and achieving good governance principles, and separation of powers and powers between the board of
directors and executive management.
Control and supervise the performance of Executive Management and verify the implementation of approved policies
and regulations.
Develop a policy to regulate the relationship with stakeholders and a mechanism which regulates dealings with
related parties.
Ensure periodically and effectively the internal control systems in place at the company and its subsidiaries.

Roles and Responsibilities - Chairman of the Board of Directors:
• Verify the Board’s efficient and timely discussion of all key matters.
• Encourage all members to fully and efficiently participate in meetings.
• Represent the Company before third parties pursuant to Articles of Association of the Company.
• Ensure actual communication with shareholders and inform the Board of their opinions.
• Encourage constructive relationships and active participation between the Board of Directors and Executive
Management.
• Create a structure which encourages constructive criticism of conflicting views.
Roles and Responsibilities – Executive Management:
• Execute the Company’s strategic plans, related policies and internal regulations and verify its adequacy and efficiency.
• Implement all internal policies, procedures and regulations of the Company approved by the Board of Directors.
• Prepare periodical (financial and non-financial) reports concerning the progress achieved within the Company’s
business.
• Develop an integrated accounting system and ensure that the preparation of financial statements is carried out
pursuant to international accounting standards approved by the authority.
• Manage day-to-day operations and manage the Company’s resources.
• Actively participate in building and developing an ethical culture inside the company.
• Develop internal control and risk management systems and verify their adequacy and efficiency.
2.2 BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ ACHIEVEMENTS DURING THE YEAR
2017 proved to be another year of achievements for the Company. The Board of Directors have achieved the following
strategic objectives:
• Increase of operational revenues.
• Enhance the potential of existing projects.
• Great accomplishment on everything related to Reem Mall project - The joint venture between UPAC, Agility and
NREC - Where this partnership provides a solid financial foundation and deep experience in asset management
and commercial property development. It is worth mentioning that the construction work is being carried out
with maximum capacity after the appointment of the project’s main contractor. This huge project will become
a sign on the Abu Dhabi land in record time, in addition to fulfilling the final conditions for financing the project.
2.3 OVERVIEW OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REQUIREMENTS TO FORM SPECIALIZED INDEPENDENT
COMMITTEES
Pursuant to the provisions and rules of Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations (“Corporate Governance”), the Board
of Directors have formed the relevant Committees to support and enable Board members to perform their roles and
responsibilities in a more effective and informed manner.
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A) Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC)
Members of the Board Risk and Audit Committee:
Name

Capacity

Board Member Classification

Hassan El- Houry

Chairman of the Board Risk and Audit
Committee (BRAC)

Non-Executive Member

Majed Al-Ajeel

Member of the Board Risk and Audit
Committee (BRAC)

Non-Executive Member

Zuhair Al-Zamel

Member of the Board Risk and Audit
Committee (BRAC)

Independent Member

The Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC) was formed pursuant to a Board Resolution executed on 28 June 2016,
following the approval from the CMA to merge the Board Risk Committee and the Board Audit Committee. The BRAC
performs tasks and responsibilities covering aspects of risk management and internal audit controls of the Company. The
BRAC term is valid for three years from its initial formation and shall be renewable upon the expiry of members’ terms.

Meeting No. 01/17 held
on 23 February 2017

Meeting No. 02/17 held
on 12 March 2017

Meeting No. 03/17 held
on 07 May 2017

Meeting No. 04/17 held
on 26 July 2017

Meeting No. 05/17 held
on 08 November 2017

Meeting No. 06/17 held
on 27 November 2017

Number of the attended
meetings

Meetings of the Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC) during 2017

Hassan El- Houry **
Chairman of the Board Risk and Audit
Committee (BRAC)

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

√

1/1

Zuhair Al-Zamel
Member of the Board Risk and Audit
Committee (BRAC)

√

√

√

√

√

√

6/6

Majed Al-Ajeel
Member of the Board Risk and Audit
Committee (BRAC)

√

√

√

√

√

√

6/6

Tarek Al-Mousa **
Former Chairman of the Committee

√

√

√

√

√

NA

5/5

Name & Capacity

√ Attendance
** The Board Risk and Audit committee (BRAC) was restructured by virtue of the Board of Directors’ decision dated
November 22nd, 2017, in the presence of Mr. Hassan El-Houry as a member of the Committee instead of Mr. Tarek
Al-Mousa, the former Chairman of the Committee. Mr. Hassan Al-Houry was elected Chairman of the Committee at its
meeting held on 27th November 2017.
BRAC held six meetings during the course of 2017, where all meetings are called for in advance by a formal invitation
extended by the Committee Chairman. The Board Secretary ensures that minutes are recorded and formally signed off
by members once they are in agreement.
Roles and Responsibilities – Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC):
• Review annual and interim financial statements and provide recommendations to the Board of Directors prior to their
final approval. This is to ensure fairness and transparency of financial statements and reports.
• Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment and reappointment of the Company’s financial auditors,
determine their fees and ensure their independence.
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•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Monitor the work of the Company’s financial auditors and confirm their services to the Company are confined to
providing audit services only.
Review the financial auditors reports and follow up progress on their notes.
Evaluate the efficiency of the Company’s internal control systems and the preparation of the Audit Committee Report.
Review and approve the Internal Audit Report schedule as proposed by the Internal Auditor and provide technical
supervision in reviewing results of the Internal Audit Report.
Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment and reappointment of the Company’s internal auditors.
Review and approve the internal audit plans proposed by the internal auditor and provide comments thereon.
Ensuring that the company complies with relevant laws, policies, regulations and instructions.
Prepare and review risk management strategies, policies and procedures and provide recommendations to the
Board prior to its final approval. Verify the implementation of such strategies and policies in line with the nature and
volume of the Company activities.
Ensure availability of adequate resources and risk management systems.
Ensure that risk management employees obtain a full understanding of the risks surrounding the Company and
ensure transparency in the awareness of potential risks.

Overview of the Achievements of the Board Risk and Audit Committee (BRAC):
• Reviewing annual and interim financial statements prior to submission to the Board of Directors and providing
recommendations.
• Reviewing the auditor’s observations on the company’s financial statements.
• Ensure proper accounting procedures are applied.
• Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment and reappointment of the Company’s internal auditors.
• Ensure that internal audit reports are issued periodically in accordance with the approved audit plan.
• Study and analyze internal audit reports and follow up the actions taken towards the observations contained in those
reports.
• Regular meetings with the company’s internal auditor at all BRAC meetings.
• Ensure the effective performance of the internal auditor of the company and assess its performance.
• Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment and reappointment of the Company’s financial auditor.
• Ensuring that Company’s financial auditor is independent and confirm their services to the Company are confined to
providing audit services only.
• Meeting periodically with the Company’s financial auditor.
• Assessment of financial auditor.
• Recommending the appointment of the head of the Risk Management Unit and ensuring its independence and
compliance with all requirements.
• Recommend to the Board of Directors the appointment and reappointment an independent risk management unit
and ensuring its independence and compliance with all requirements.
• Prepare necessary reports and adoption of effective risk management systems and procedures.
• Studying and analyzing risk reports, presenting risks and expressing opinions and recommending them to the Board
of Directors.
B) Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (BNRC)
Members of the Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Name
Zuhair Al-Zamel
Tarek Al-Mousa
Nadia Akil

Capacity
Chairman of the Board Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (BNRC)
Member of the Board Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (BNRC)
Member of the Board Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (BNRC)

Board Member Classification
Independent/ Non-Executive Member
Non-Executive Member
Executive Member
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The Board Nomination and Remuneration Committee (BNRC) was formed pursuant to a Board Resolution dated 10
November 2016. Members of the BNRC carry out the responsibilities of the Committee assigned to them as per Book
15 of the CMA Executive Regulations (“Corporate Governance”). The BNRC term is valid for three years from its initial
formation and shall be renewable upon the expiry of members’ terms.
Meetings of the BNRC during 2017
Meeting No. 01/17 held
on 12 March 2017

Number of the attended
meetings

Zuhair Al-Zamel
Chairman of the Board Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (BNRC)

√

1/1

Tarek Al-Mousa
Member of the Board Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (BNRC)

√

1/1

Nadia Akil
Member of the Board Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (BNRC)

√

1/1

Name & Capacity

√ Attendance
The BNRC held one meeting during the course of 2017 in line with the minimum required meetings per year. All Committee
meetings are called at least five days in advance by way of a formal invitation extended by the Committee Chairperson.
Each time a meeting is called for, a formal agenda is shared with members along with all necessary supporting documents
prior to the meeting to allow members sufficient time to review. The Board Secretary ensures that minutes are recorded
and formally signed off by members once they are in agreement.
Responsibilities of the BNRC:
• Recommend the nomination or re-nomination of Board Members and of Executive Management.
• Develop a clear remuneration policy for Board Members and Executive Management.
• Develop clear job descriptions for Executive Members, Non-Executive Members and the Independent Member.
• Prepare a detailed Annual Report outlining the benefits for Board Members and Executive.
Overview of the Achievements of the Nominations and Remunerations Committee:
• Prepare an annual report of the remuneration granted to members of the Board of Directors and Executive
Management.
• Review the remuneration policy manual.
• Recommend for the Board of Directors’ Remuneration.
• Recommend nomination / re-nomination the Board members and Executive Management.
2.4 OVERVIEW OF THE METHODOLOGY WHICH PROVIDES MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
WITH ACCURATE AND TIMELY INFORMATION AND DATA
The Company is committed to ensuring complete accessibility and availability of information to the Board. To further
validate this purpose, the Board of Directors has jointly approved a policy to clearly outline the roles and responsibilities
of the Board Secretary. Such tasks include the scheduling of meetings, circulation of agenda items, maintaining and
updating the company register with all relevant documentation, and the accurate and timely provision of information prior
to scheduled meetings. In addition, the Board Secretary also ensures that minutes are recorded during the course of the
meetings and formally signed off by members once they are in agreement.
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PILLAR 3: SELECTION OF QUALIFIED CANDIDATES FOR THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
3.1 OVERVIEW OF THE APPLICATION OF REQUIREMENTS FOR THE FORMATION OF THE BOARD
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (BNRC)
In addition to the above responsibilities, the Board of Directors approved the Committee Charter which outlines the roles
and responsibilities of the Committee in line with Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations (“Corporate Governance”).
3.2 REPORT ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION
In compliance with the highest standards of transparency and in line with the best practices adopted under the Corporate
Governance Framework, the Company has committed to provide a detailed annual report outlining the total remuneration
packages granted to members of the Board of Directors and Executive Management. Such remuneration is outlined as
follows:
Board of Directors’ Remuneration:
Board Members’ remuneration is ultimately recommended by the BNRC and presented for final approval to the
Company’s Annual General Assembly (AGM). Total remunerations shall not exceed 10% of the net profits of the company
following any relevant deductions as set out in the Company’s Articles of Association. In 2017, the total remuneration
recommended to be awarded to the Board of Directors amounted to a sum of KD 25,000 (twenty five thousand Kuwaiti
Dinar)
Executive Management Remuneration:
Remuneration granted to Executive Management includes two main components – fixed and variable remuneration. Fixed
benefits are related to those benefits assigned to Executive Management per their associated roles and responsibilities,
whereas variable benefits are those awarded for the successful performance and achievement of specific objectives.
Both Human Resources and members of the BNRC are involved in setting the above benefits and reviewing them
annually. The below table sets out the total fixed and variable benefits extended to Executive Management in 2017.
Classification

Number of
employees

Fixed
remuneration
(KD thousand)

Variable
remuneration
(KD thousand)

Total
(KD thousand)

Members of Executive Management

5

211

145

356

PILLAR 4: ENSURE THE INTEGRITY OF FINANCIAL REPORTING
4.1 WRITTEN UNDERTAKINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AS TO THE
SOUNDNESS AND INTEGRITY OF FINANCIAL REPORTING
Executive Management is mindful of its responsibilities to the Board of Directors with regards to the significance of
accounting policies and to the preparation of fair and sound financial statements.The Executive Management has prepared
and presented a written undertaking to the Board of Directors confirming that financial statements have been prepared
with integrity and that all financial aspects of the Company are in line with approved international accounting standards.
The Board of Directors aims to ensure the integrity of its financial reporting to shareholders – thus presenting its Annual
Report at the end of the fiscal year. The financial statements and reports issued by the Company are prepared as follows:
• Annual Financial Statements.
• Interim Financial Statements.
• Forms of Disclosure of Annual and Interim Profits of the Company.
• Annual Reports.
4.2 OVERVIEW OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE
Members of the Audit Committee have been selected to ensure they hold the relevant experience and capabilities to
perform their allocated tasks effectively and responsibly. Furthermore, the Board of Directors approved the Committee
Charter, which includes an overview of the specific tasks and responsibilities of the Committee, and as per applicable
provisions of Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations (“Corporate Governance”).
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4.3 OVERVIEW OF THE RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE BOARD AUDIT COMMITTEE AND RESOLUTIONS OF
THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Although the Board Audit Committee is ultimately formed and approved by the Board of Directors, members of the Audit
Committee carry out their tasks and responsibilities as per the Audit Committee Charter and provide a recommendation
to the Board of Directors for final approval. Given that Committee members have been chosen specifically to meet the
requirements set out under the Audit Committee Charter, all recommendations provided to the Board of Directors are
typically considered to be sound and effective. During the course of 2017, the Committee did not report any contradictions
or inconsistencies between Committee recommendations presented to the Board and the Resolutions of the Board of
Directors passed through the year.
4.4 SAFEGUARDING THE INDEPENDENCE AND IMPARTIALITY OF THE EXTERNAL AUDITOR
Based on feedback and recommendations provided by members of the Audit Committee through their nomination of the
external auditor and the review of their performance, the Company hereby ensures the full independence and impartiality
of its external auditors. Furthermore, the Company confirms that the external auditors have been engaged only for the
provision of such services required to be performed under the external audit profession.

PILLAR 5: APPLYING SOUND SYSTEMS OF RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT
5.1 ESTABLISH AN INDEPENDENT UNIT FOR RISK MANAGEMENT
The Risk Management Function is one of the most important objectives and a main component for the Board of Directors.
Enabling a process whereby risks can be identified and categorized at different risk levels is a key contributing factor to the
overall success of the Company. The continuous development and effective application of Risk Management measures
is vital to ensure effective and stable continuity within the Company’s activities. Given the relevance of the overall Risk
Management Function, the Board of Directors have therefore approved and endorsed an independent unit for the Risk
Management Function. The Risk Management Function is responsible for reviewing the risk management strategies and
assessing the Company’s overall risk management policies and procedures. The function seeks to assist the Board in
defining certain risks that may face the Company as well as in assessing acceptable risk levels. This Risk Management
Function ultimately reports to the Board Risk Committee, which in turn provides their final recommendations to the Board
of Directors.
5.2 OVERVIEW OF THE BOARD RISK MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
In addition to the above responsibilities, the Board of Directors has formally approved the Board Risk Committee Charter,
which outlines clearly the roles and responsibilities of the Committee in line with applicable provisions of Book 15 of the
CMA Executive Regulations (“Corporate Governance”).
5.3 OVERVIEW OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT SYSTEMS AND CONTROLS
The Board is fully responsible for the implementation of the Company’s Internal Audit Systems and Controls. Internal
policies have been developed in order to ensure set standards and internal control processes are followed and adopted
by the Company to enhance the soundness, accuracy and efficiency of its operations. The Internal Audit Function is
responsible for reviewing and monitoring a set of policies and regulations and for preparing the necessary reports for
submission to the Internal Audit Committee. The Internal Audit Committee will in turn review the reports for final submission
to the Board of Directors for approval. The main internal controls that have been implemented in the Company to date
are as follows:
1. Delegation of authorities – limitation and allocation of certain powers and responsibilities.
2. Separation of certain tasks and the prevention of potential conflicts of interest.
3. Dual inspection and controls for further verifications.
4. Dual signatures for further verifications.
5. Establishment of approved policies and procedures for the Company.
6. Implementation of modern automated technological systems for the enhancement of internal controls within the
Company (E-forms - Transfora).
In addition, and as per Corporate Governance Requirements, a fully certified and independent auditor (Deloitte and
Touche) was appointed to carry out the evaluation and review of the Company’s Internal Control Systems and for the
preparation of the Internal Control Report (ICR), which is to be submitted to the CMA within 90 days of the end of
the fiscal year. Pursuant to Article 6-9 of Book 15 of the CMA Executive Regulations (“Corporate Governance”), the
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Company will appoint a different auditor every three (3) years in order to conduct the review and evaluation of the Internal
Audit Function.
5.4 OVERVIEW OF THE INDEPENDENT UNIT FOR INTERNAL AUDIT AND CONTROLS
On 22 June 2016, UPAC obtained the approval from the CMA in order to outsource the Internal Audit Function to its
Parent Company. The Parent currently enjoys a fully established, independent and integrated system of Internal Audit
and Controls, tasked with carrying out audits in accordance with plans set and approved by the Board of Directors.
The Internal Audit Department is responsible for setting the internal audit schedule, conducting the actual internal audit,
and providing final reports and recommendations to the Board Audit Committee for recommendation to the Board of
Directors for final approval.

PILLAR 6: PROMOTE CODE OF CONDUCT AND ETHICAL STANDARDS
6.1 OVERVIEW OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND BUSINESS ETHICS
The Company has developed a Code of Conduct that has been ratified and approved by the Board of Directors. The Code
is intended to serve as a guiding principle for Members of the Board and Executive Management with regards to proper
and ethical business conduct. The Code of Conduct covers the professional standards and ethical values applicable to
clients, suppliers and stakeholders alike, both inside or outside the company. It also serves to enhance and uphold the
qualities of integrity, impartiality and discretion. Board members are thus expected to exercise good judgment, to ensure
the interests, safety and welfare of customers, employees and other stakeholders are met and to maintain a cooperative,
efficient, and positive work environment. The Code also establishes certain set standards in dealing with issues related to
insider trading, dealings with related parties, conflicts of interest and whistle blowing procedures. Furthermore, all Board
Members, Executive Management and employees shall abide by the Code of Conduct, and apply the highest of ethical
standards during the performance of their duties and responsibilities.
6.2 OVERVIEW OF THE POLICIES USED TO MITIGATE CONFLICTS OF INTEREST
The Board of Directors adopted a conflict of interest policy aimed at ensuring that appropriate procedures are applied to
identify and deal effectively with cases of conflict of interest. It also ensures that the Board of Directors deals with conflicts
of interest that exist and are reasonably possible and that all decisions are taken in the best interests of the Company.
This policy is an integral part of the Company’s full commitment to integrity and fairness in dealing with stakeholders. The
policy also highlights the concept of conflict of interest, the basis of dealing, how to manage conflicts of interest through
established examples, parties whose interests might conflict with the Company, and the roles of the Board of Directors,
Executive Management and internal audit. The policy also reviewed procedures for dealing with conflicts of interest and
disclosure mechanisms.

PILLAR 7: ENSURE TIMELY AND HIGH QUALITY DISCLOSURES
7.1 OVERVIEW OF ACCURATE AND TRANSPARENT DISCLOSURES
Accurate disclosures form the basic foundation for tracking the Company’s activities and for evaluating performance,
whether this is carried out by current shareholders, potential investors or the general public. Given the importance
of information accuracy and transparency, the Board has developed a Disclosure Policy outlining standard rules and
procedures to be applied when disclosing pertinent information. The Disclosure Policy has been developed in compliance
with the provisions of the Corporate Governance laws and shall be reviewed regularly in line with the best practices and
latest CMA disclosure rules.
7.2 OVERVIEW OF DISCLOSURE RECORDS FOR MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE
MANAGEMENT
The Company maintains a detailed disclosure register which includes and monitors all disclosure records for Board
Members and Executive Management. Such records are easily accessible by all shareholders without any additional fees
or considerations. The Company regularly reviews and updates the disclosure data and records in order to accurately
reflect the company’s position.
7.3 SUMMARY OF REQUIREMENTS FOR THE FORMATION OF AN INVESTOR RELATIONS UNIT
The Company established a separate Investor Relations Unit in charge of establishing and monitoring disclosures.
This Unit is responsible for the overall provision of necessary data, information and reports for the benefit of current
shareholders as well as potential investors. The Investor Relations Unit enjoys a certain level of independence and this
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allows it to perform its duties and provide accurate and timely information through well-established disclosure systems
including the corporate website.
7.4 DEVELOPMENT OF A SOLID INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY FRAMEWORK TO SUPPORT THE
DISCLOSURE PROCESS
The Company has developed solid IT systems in order to support its disclosure process, as well as to enhance further
communication with its shareholders, investors and stakeholders. The corporate website has been developed in line
with Corporate Governance regulations and has thus dedicated a specific tab covering ‘Investor Relations.’ This section
covers all previous and current disclosures and provides a breadth of information and other pertinent data to enable
potential investors and shareholders to exercise their rights, and accurately evaluate the Company’s performance.

PILLAR 8: PROTECTION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
8.1 SUMMARY OF THE REQUIREMENTS FOR THE PROTECTION OF SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND TO
ENSURING FAIRNESS AND EQUALITY AMONGST ALL SHAREHOLDERS
The Company’s Articles of Association include various regulations and internal policies and procedures necessary for
the protection of shareholders rights, and to ensure their fair and equal treatment. Furthermore, this article takes into
consideration all shareholders’ rights without any partiality and without causing damage to the overall interests of the
Company, thus falling in line with applicable laws and regulatory instructions.
8.2 SUMMARY OF THE FORMATION OF A SPECIAL REGISTER TO BE MAINTAINED WITH THE CLEARING
AGENCY AND IN LINE WITH THE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONTINUOUS UPDATES TO SHAREHOLDERS’
INFORMATION
For the accurate and continuous follow up of shareholders’ data, the Company formed a special register “The Shareholders’
Register” to be maintained and updated with the specified clearing agency – the Kuwait Clearing Company (KCC). This
register includes names of shareholders as well as details of the number of shares they hold. The KCC also maintains
any amendments to the existing data and records in its register. Data incorporated in the shareholders’ register is treated
with the greatest degree of protection and confidentiality in line with applicable laws and regulations.
8.3 OVERVIEW OF SHAREHOLDERS’ INCENTIVES TO PARTICIPATE AND VOTE IN THE COMPANY’S
GENERAL ASSEMBLIES
Participation in the AGM is one of the basic rights for all shareholders and thus shareholders are encouraged to attend
and actively participate in these annual meetings. In order to ensure the full extent of shareholder participation, certain
measures are taken by the Company when calling for its AGM including extending formal notices calling for its date, time
and location, as well as sharing agenda items for discussion, as per applicable laws and regulations.

PILLAR 9: RECOGNIZE THE ROLES OF STAKEHOLDERS
9.1 OVERVIEW OF THE SYSTEMS AND POLICIES USED TO ENSURE THE PROTECTION AND RECOGNITION
OF STAKEHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
The Company developed more than one policy to govern the roles of stakeholders. Such policies include the adoption
of certain procedures implemented to ensure the protection and recognition of stakeholders’ rights. These include fair
and equal treatment without prejudice in line with applicable laws, and pursuant to the relevant executive regulations and
regulatory controls.
9.2 OVERVIEW OF THE STAKEHOLDERS’ INCENTIVES TO PARTICIPATE IN TRACKING THE VARIOUS
ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
Stakeholders are encouraged to stay updated and participate in monitoring the different activities of the Company
through Company news, applicable disclosures, or through the facilitation of the Board of Directors of the Company.
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PILLAR 10: ENCOURAGE AND ENHANCE PERFORMANCE IMPROVEMENT
10.1 IMPLEMENT POLICIES THAT ALLOW BOARD MEMBERS AND EXECUTIVE MEMBERS TO OBTAIN
CONTINUOUS TRAINING PROGRAMS
One of the key elements of Corporate Governance includes implementing policies to ensure that Members of the Board
and Executive Management obtain access to continuous training programs and are up to date with the latest business
developments. A qualified and functioning Board is one of the key components of a successful business, and for this
reason the Company has developed certain procedures to allow Board Members and Executive Management to attend
relevant training programs in order to further enhance and strengthen their experience, administrative and organizational
skills. The following are some of the courses attended by Board Members and Executive Management during the course
of 2017:
• Conflict of Interest
• Insider Trading
• Risk Based Internal Audit (RBIA conference)
10.2 OVERVIEW OF THE EVALUATION OF BOARD MEMBERS AND EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT AGAINST A
SET OF AGREED PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
In order to continually monitor and ensure applicability, the Company has worked on developing certain mechanisms for
the evaluation of the performance of the Members of the Board of Directors, Committees and Executive Management.
Performance evaluations are carried out regularly against a set of agreed key performance indicators related to the
Company’s strategic objectives. Such indicators reflect performance of Members of the Board and Executive Management,
and seek to identify areas of strengths and deficiencies to tailor future training needs accordingly.
10.3 OVERVIEW ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ EFFORT TOWARDS “VALUE CREATION” FOR EMPLOYEES
WITHIN THE COMPANY THROUGH FULFILLMENT OF STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES AND PERFORMANCE
IMPROVEMENT
Board Members’ performance should promote value creation principles among their employees. The Company has worked
to adopt certain modern technology systems for the evaluation of employees’ performance under the ‘Management
by Objectives’ system. Such evaluation is performed in the beginning of the year, setting clear targets and objectives
for each employee based on his / her job requirements, with progress monitored throughout the year. Furthermore,
the Company has implemented integrated reporting systems at all departmental levels in order to share relevant and
updated company information with the Members of the Board and Executive Management, thereby supporting and
encouraging accurate decision making.

PILLAR 11: IMPORTANCE OF CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
11.1 OVERVIEW OF DEVELOPMENT OF A POLICY ENSURING A BALANCE BETWEEN THE OBJECTIVES OF
THE COMPANY AND OF SOCIETY
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) forms an important part of the Company’s commitment to act ethically and to
contribute to the achievement of sustainable development. An internal policy based on the importance of CSR has
thus been developed with the aim to highlight social responsibility, and create a balance between the objectives of the
Company and those of society.
11.2 OVERVIEW OF THE MECHANISMS USED TO HIGHLIGHT THE COMPANY’S EFFORTS WITHIN
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
Various policies and mechanisms have been adopted during the year to highlight the efforts of the Company within the
CSR framework. UPAC is keen to support social responsibility measures in accordance with its strategic objectives and
responsibilities, be it through environmental support, charitable events or other acts supporting the local community.
For further information about the different social responsibility initiatives sponsored by the Company, please visit our
website at www.upac.com.kw
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Independent Auditor’s Report

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNITED PROJECTS COMPANY FOR AVIATION SERVICES K.S.C.P.
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of United Projects Company For Aviation Services K.S.C.P. (the
“Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, “the Group”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including the summary of significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”).
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements’
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
Emphasis of matter
We draw attention to Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements, which describes the uncertainty relating to the
management’s ability to renew a Build- Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) contract that may have an impact on a portion of the
Group’s operations in the future relating to this BOT contract. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each key audit matter identified below, our description of how our audit addressed the
matter is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance
of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
UNITED PROJECTS COMPANY FOR AVIATION SERVICES K.S.C.P. (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
a) Impairment of intangible assets
The Group has intangible assets consisting of Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT”) contracts with the Government of State of
Kuwait for construction and operation of airport terminals and car parks. The significant portion of Group’s operations are
arising from these limited period BOT contracts. The management has assessed, in accordance with the requirements of
IAS 38 and IAS 36, whether there are any significant external adverse changes including market, economic, technological
or legal environment factors in which the Group operates or internal observable factors including failure to meet budgeted
and forecasted earnings in the current and prior years; that may trigger indicators of impairment that will either impact the
carrying value or the remaining useful life. Due to the significance of these intangible assets and its amortisation expense
to the consolidated financial statements as a whole and the assumptions used by the management in assessing whether
there are any indicators of impairment, we have identified BOT intangible assets as a key audit matter. The accounting
policies relating to intangible assets and the judgments and assumptions used by the management in assessing the
indicators of impairment are given in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
Our audit procedures included, among others, evaluation of management’s assessment of indicators of impairment as
at the reporting date. As noted above, the key input measures adopted by the management in assessing whether there
are any indicators of impairment of intangible assets included market related data such as the local economic factors,
technological or legal environment specifically to the State of Kuwait and also certain internal information relating to the
cash flows generated by these BOT contracts. We have evaluated the appropriateness of these input measures by
analysing at the financial information of the Group, publicly available economic data, legal documentation of these BOT
contracts etc. We have also assessed the appropriateness of disclosures relating to intangible assets in Note 6 to the
consolidated financial statements.
b) Classification and impairment of a financing arrangement
The Group has started financing a related party since 2014 for constructing and developing a mega commercial mall in
UAE (“Project”) through a complex financing arrangement. As the terms of the agreement are critical for assessing the
ongoing classification of this arrangement and the impairment of amounts due from the related party, the management
evaluates these terms on each reporting period. These terms also include a conversion feature into equity of the Project
on meeting certain operational targets. The management assessed the Project status to evaluate the recoverability of the
carrying amount that is due from the related party as at the reporting date including the macroeconomic factors in UAE,
the business plan of the Project etc. Given the significance of the Project and the complexity of this transaction, we have
identified the classification and impairment of the financing arrangement as a key audit matter.
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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Key Audit Matters (continued)
b) Classification and impairment of a financing arrangement (continued)
As part of our audit procedures, among others, we have evaluated the terms of various agreements entered by the
Group in relation to this Project to assess the appropriateness of the accounting treatment, classification and disclosure
of all aspects of the financing arrangements to date. We have tested a sample of the material contributions made during
the year to finance the Project by tracing them to supporting evidence and comparing it with the contractual terms of
the agreements. We have also evaluated the appropriateness of management’s assessment in identifying impairment
indicators as at the reporting date. The disclosures relating to the loan to a related party are given in Note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
Other information included in the Group’s 2017 Annual Report
Management is responsible for the other information. Other information consists of the information included in the
Group’s 2017 Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. We
obtained the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors, prior to the date of our auditor’s report, and we expect
to obtain the remaining sections of the Annual Report after the date of our auditor’s report.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not and will not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed on the other information that we obtained prior to the date of this auditor’s report, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance
with the IFRS, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.
Those Charged with Governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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UNITED PROJECTS COMPANY FOR AVIATION SERVICES K.S.C.P. (continued)
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group
to cease to continue as a going concern.

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with Those Charged with Governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing
of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.
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Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued)
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with Those Charged with Governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits
of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Furthermore, in our opinion proper books of account have been kept by the Parent Company and the consolidated
financial statements, together with the contents of the report of the Parent Company’s Board of Directors relating to these
consolidated financial statements, are in accordance therewith. We further report that, we obtained all the information
and explanations that we required for the purpose of our audit and that the consolidated financial statements incorporate
all information that is required by the Companies Law No.1 of 2016, as amended, and its executive regulations, as
amended, and by the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation and Articles of Association, that an inventory
was duly carried out and that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no violations of the Companies Law No.1 of 2016,
as amended, and its executive regulations, as amended, nor of the Parent Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation
and Articles of Association have occurred during the year ended 31 December 2017 that might have had a material effect
on the business of the Parent Company or on its financial position.

BADER AL-ABDULJADER
LICENCE NO. 207-A
EY
AL-AIBAN, AL-OSAIMI & PARTNERS
28 February 2018
Kuwait
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Consolidated Financial Statements
United Projects Company for Aviation Services K.S.C.P and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 31 December 2017

Notes
Revenues
Operating costs
GROSS PROFIT
General and administrative expenses
Salaries and employee benefits
Other income
Profit before interest, taxation, depreciation and amortisation
(“EBITDA”)
Depreciation
Amortisation

6

Profit before interest and taxation (“EBIT”)
Interest income
Profit for the year before contribution to Kuwait Foundation for
the Advancement of Sciences (“KFAS”), National Labour
Support Tax (“NLST”), Zakat and Board of Directors’
Remuneration
Contribution to KFAS
NLST
Zakat
Board of Directors’ remuneration

16

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests

4

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT COMPANY

5

Profit for the year
Items that are or maybe reclassified to statement of comprehensive
income in subsequent periods:
Foreign currency translation adjustment
Other comprehensive loss for the year
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The attached notes 1 to 21 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2017
KD

2016
KD

13,992,623
(1,231,814)
──────────
12,760,809

13,221,512
(1,190,747)
──────────
12,030,765

(1,824,877)
(1,141,153)
79,806
──────────

(1,588,504)
(1,040,845)
391,528
──────────

9,874,585

9,792,944

(71,868)
(1,871,547)
──────────
7,931,170

(52,500)
(2,355,282)
──────────
7,385,162

2,200,991
──────────

1,469,291
──────────

10,132,161

8,854,453

(82,782)
(257,476)
(91,501)
(25,000)
──────────
9,675,402
══════════

(88,787)
(229,401)
(92,662)
(25,000)
──────────
8,418,603
══════════

9,644,470
30,932
──────────
9,675,402
══════════

8,442,803
(24,200)
──────────
8,418,603
══════════

101.33 fils
══════════

88.71 fils
══════════

9,675,402
──────────

8,418,603
──────────

(333,914)
──────────
(333,914)
──────────
9,341,488
══════════

-    
──────────
-    
──────────
8,418,603
══════════
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United Projects Company for Aviation Services K.S.C.P and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 31 December 2017

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment
Intangible assets
Financial assets available for sale
Loan to a related party

Current assets
Accounts receivable and other assets
Cash and cash equivalents

2017
KD

2016
KD

283,580
10,224,312
1,449,198
30,022,447
─────────
41,979,537
─────────

280,837
12,071,794
2,749,198
20,339,286
─────────
35,441,115
─────────

8
9

3,499,184
7,679,086
─────────
11,178,270
─────────
53,157,807
═════════

2,701,546
5,307,034
─────────
8,008,580
─────────
43,449,695
═════════

10 (a)
10 (b)
10 (c)
11

10,000,000
10,500,000
5,000,000
(1,544,594)
(260,978)
(333,914)
15,480,385
─────────
38,840,899
2,123,770
─────────
40,964,669
─────────

8,250,000
10,500,000
4,125,000
(1,544,594)
(260,978)
-    
8,460,915
─────────
29,530,343
2,460,240
─────────
31,990,583
─────────

12

4,774,891
399,990
─────────
5,174,881
─────────

3,484,154
304,561
─────────
3,788,715
─────────

12

7,018,257
─────────
12,193,138
─────────
53,157,807
═════════

7,670,397
─────────
11,459,112
─────────
43,449,695
═════════

Notes

6
7
13

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital
Share premium
Statutory reserve
Treasury shares
Other reserve
Foreign currency translation reserve
Retained earnings
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company
Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Employees’ end of service benefits

Current liability
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Total liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

__________________________________
Tarek Ibrahim Mohammad Al Mousa					
Chairman 								

______________________________
Nadia Abdullah Mohammad Akil
CEO & Vice Chairperson

The attached notes 1 to 21 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017

2016

KD

KD

10,132,161

8,854,453

1,943,415

2,407,782

123,332

79,378

(2,200,991)

(1,469,291)

94,993

226,560

-    

(222,881)

─────────

─────────

Accounts receivable and other assets

(1,260,033)

(908,990)

Accounts payable and other liabilities

181,838

1,160,220

─────────

─────────

(27,903)

(10,267)

─────────

─────────

─────────

─────────

(74,611)

(113,528)

Notes
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year before KFAS, NLST, Zakat and Board of Directors’
remuneration
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation
Provision for employees’ end of service benefits
Interest income
Provision for doubtful debt, net

8

Foreign currency gain

10,092,910

9,876,001

Working capital changes:

Cash flows from operations

9,014,715

Employees’ end of service benefits paid
Net cash flows from operating activities

8,986,812

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of property and equipment
Additions to intangible assets

6

Proceeds from maturity of financial assets available for sale
Loan to a related party
Interest income received
Net cash flows used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITY
Dividend paid

Cash flows used in financing activity

The attached notes 1 to 21 form part of these consolidated financial statements.
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-    
1,950,000

(7,913,845)

(9,298,477)

97,761

137,689

─────────

─────────

─────────

─────────

-    

(6,752,720)

─────────

─────────

─────────

─────────

5,307,034

9,267,106

─────────

─────────

═════════

═════════

2,372,052

Cash and cash equivalents as at 1 January
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31 DECEMBER

(24,065)

-    

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

9

10,116,964

1,300,000

(6,614,760)

16

10,127,231

7,679,086

(7,324,316)

(6,752,720)
(3,960,072)

5,307,034

KD

KD

KD

reserve
KD

shares

Treasury

-

-

-

-

-

-

(260,978)

KD

reserve
KD

earnings
KD

Sub-total

KD

interests

Non-controlling
KD

Total

(333,914)

-

(333,914)

- 9,644,470 9,644,470

-

(333,914)

30,932 9,675,402

- 8,460,915 29,530,343 2,460,240 31,990,583

KD

reserve

Retained

-

-

-

-

875,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(875,000)

- (1,750,000)

-

-

-

(333,914) 9,644,470 9,310,556

(367,402)

-

-

(367,402)

-

-

30,932 9,341,488

(260,978)

(333,914) 15,480,385 38,840,899 2,123,770 40,964,669

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(260,978)

- (6,752,720) (6,752,720)

- 8,442,803 8,442,803

- (6,752,720)

(24,200) 8,418,603

- 6,770,832 27,840,260 2,484,440 30,324,700

(260,978)

- 8,460,915 29,530,343 2,460,240 31,990,583

════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════

8,250,000 10,500,000 4,125,000 (1,544,594)

──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ────────

-

-

8,250,000 10,500,000 4,125,000 (1,544,594)

════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════ ════════

10,000,000 10,500,000 5,000,000 (1,544,594)

──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ────────

-

-

1,750,000

──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ──────── ────────

-

-

8,250,000 10,500,000 4,125,000 (1,544,594)

premium

capital

Statutory

Foreign
currency
Other translation

Attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company

The attached notes 1 to 21 form part of these consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2016

Dividends for 2015 at 86 fils per share (Note 16)

Total comprehensive income for the year

As at 1 January 2016

As at 31 December 2017

Liquidation of a subsidiary

Transfer to statutory reserve

Issue of bonus shares (Note 16)

Total comprehensive (loss) income
for the year

Other comprehensive loss for the year

Profit for the year

As at 1 January 2017

Share

Share

For the year ended 31 December 2017

United Projects Company for Aviation Services K.S.C.P and Subsidiaries
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
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United Projects Company for Aviation Services K.S.C.P and Subsidiaries
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017

1

ACTIVITIES AND CORPORATE INFORMATION

United Projects Company for Aviation Services K.S.C.P. (the “Parent Company”) was established as a closed Kuwaiti shareholding company on 4 December 2000 which is listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange. The Parent Company’s registered address
is Kuwait International Airport, P.O. Box 27068 Safat 13131, State of Kuwait. The main objectives of the Parent Company are:
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·
·

Providing airplane ground and cleaning services and supply of water and other airplane supplies;
Leasing out airplanes;
Tourism, travel and cargo shipment services;
Managing projects;
Investing surplus funds in investment portfolios managed by specialised institutions;
The right to participate with other firms, which operate in the same field or those, which would assist in achieving its
objectives in Kuwait or abroad, and to purchase those firms or participate in their equity.
Management and development of real estate activities including real estate consultancy services;
General trading of construction materials, equipment and real estate;
To own, lease and rent out land and real estate properties;
Sharing in executing the infrastructure for the housing, trading and industrial projects and manage real estate facilities under BOT regulations.

The consolidated financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 February 2018 and are subject to
the approval of the Annual General Assembly of the shareholders of the Parent Company. The Annual General Assembly
of the shareholders has the power to amend these consolidated financial statements after issuance.
The shares of Parent Company are listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.
The Parent Company is a subsidiary of Agility Public Warehousing Company K.S.C.P (the “Ultimate Parent Company”),
which is listed on the Kuwait Stock Exchange.
2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost basis. The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Kuwaiti Dinars (“KD”) being the functional currency of the Parent Company.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Parent Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2017. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:
·
·
·

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee);
Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:
·
·
·

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
Rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses at each reporting date whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate
that there are changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017
2.1

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)
Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of
the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into
line with the Group’s accounting policies.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members
of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.If
the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, non-controlling
interest and other components of equity while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.
Non-controlling interests represent the equity in the subsidiaries not attributable directly, or indirectly, to the shareholders
of the Parent Company. Equity and net income attributable to non-controlling interests are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
The subsidiaries of the Group are as follows:
Name of the company
Royal Aviation Company K.S.C. (Closed) (“RAC”)

Country of
incorporation

Principal activity

Effective
Ownership %
2017

2016

Kuwait

Management and services

66.57

66.57

United National For Aviation Services Company W.L.L.
Kuwait
(“UNASC”)

Management and services

-

51.00

Al Arfaj Real Estate Company K.S.C. (Closed)
(“Arfaj”)”)

Kuwait

Real estate and property development 100.00 100.00

United Arab
Emirates

Real estate and property development 100.00 100.00

Held indirectly through Arfaj
Arfaj Limited

During the current year, UNASC, a dormant company, was liquidated.
2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES
New and amended standards and interpretations
The accounting policies used in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are consistent with those
used in the previous year except for the amendments to IFRS effective as of 1 January 2017 which did not have any
impact on the financial position or performance of the Group. The nature and the impact of each new standard or
amendment is described below:
Amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows: Disclosure Initiative
The amendments require entities to provide disclosure of changes in their liabilities arising from financing activities, including both changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such as foreign exchange gains or losses). However, the application of this amendment does not have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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As at and for the year ended 31 December 2017
3.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue can
be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding discounts.
The Group assesses its revenue arrangements against specific criteria in order to determine if it is acting as principal or
agent. The Group has concluded that it is acting as a principal in all of its revenue arrangements. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognised:
Rental income
Rental income from operating leases, less the Group’s initial direct costs of entering into the leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over lease term, except for contingent rental income which is recognised when it arises.
Amounts received from tenants to terminate leases or to compensate for dilapidations are recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when they arise.
Services income
Revenue from aviation services such as aircraft ground handling and real estate activities such as security, cleaning and
maintenance works are recognised when the related services are rendered.
Interest income
Interest income is recognised as interest accrues using effective interest rate method.
Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at
the inception of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the
use of a specific asset (or assets) and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset (or assets), even if that asset is
(or those assets are) not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
Group as a lessee
A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease that transfers substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Group is classified as a finance lease.
A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Group
will obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life
of the asset and the lease term.
An operating lease is a lease other than a finance lease. Operating lease payments are recognised as an operating expense in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents
are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.
Taxation
Contribution to Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS)
The Parent Company calculates the contribution to KFAS at 1% in accordance with the modified calculation based on
the Foundation’s Board of Directors resolution, which states that the income from associates and subsidiaries, Board of
Directors’ remuneration, transfer to statutory reserve should be excluded from profit for the year when determining the
contribution.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Taxation (continued)
National Labour Support Tax (NLST)
The Parent Company calculates the NLST in accordance with Law No. 19 of 2000 and the Ministry of Finance Resolutions No. 24 of 2006 at 2.5% of taxable profit for the year. As per law, income from associates and subsidiaries, cash
dividends from listed companies which are subjected to NLST have been deducted from the profit for the year.
Zakat
Contribution to Zakat is calculated at 1% of the profit of the Parent Company in accordance with the Ministry of Finance
resolution No. 58/2007.
Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired
in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are
carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. The estimated useful lives of intangible
assets are as follows:
Commercial complex of Kuwait International Airport

20 years

Discovery Mall*

10 years

Sheikh Saa’d Terminal

16 years

*Fully amortised as at 31 December 2017

Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over their useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that an intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the amortisation method for
an intangible asset with a finite useful life is reviewed at least at each financial year end.
Changes in the expected useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in
the asset is accounted for by changing the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes
in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised.
Impairment of non-financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs
to sell and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation
multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded subsidiaries or other available fair value indicators.
The Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations which are prepared separately
for each of the Group’s cash-generating units to which the individual assets are allocated. These budgets and forecast
calculations are generally covering a period of five years. For longer periods, a long term growth rate is calculated and
applied to project future cash flows after the fifth year.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
Impairment losses of continuing operations are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
in those expense categories consistent with the function of the impaired asset, except for assets previously revalued
where the revaluation taken to other comprehensive income. In this case the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.
Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset (CGU) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.
Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held to maturity investments or financial assets available for sale, or as derivatives designated as hedging instrument in an effective hedge as appropriate. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable
transaction costs, except in the case of financial assets recorded at fair value through profit or loss.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset.
The Group’s financial assets include financial assets available for sale, loan to a related party, receivables and cash and
cash equivalents. As at 31 December 2017, the Group has neither held to maturity investments nor financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as follows:
Financial assets available for sale
Financial assets available for sale include equity and debt securities. Equity investments classified as available for sale
are those are neither classified as held for trading nor designated at fair value through profit or loss. Debt securities in
this category are that those are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time and that may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or in response to changes in the market conditions.
After initial measurement, financial assets available for sale are subsequently measured at fair value with unrealised gains
or losses recognised in other comprehensive income until the investment is derecognised, at which time the cumulative
gain or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income or determined to be impaired, at
which time the cumulative loss is reclassified to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Financial assets
available for sale whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are carried at cost less impairment losses, if any. Interest
earned whilst holding financial assets available for sale is reported as interest income using the effective interest rate
method.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is included
in interest income in the statement of comprehensive income. The losses for loans and receivables arising from impairment are recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of financial position and consolidated statement of cash flows
comprise cash in hand and at banks, cash held by portfolio manager and time deposits with an original maturity of up
to three months.
Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised when:
·
·

The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or
The Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a)
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards. When it has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assets measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Group could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. An impairment exists if one or more events that has occurred since the initial recognition of
the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’), has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a
group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and observable data indicating that there
is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults.
Financial assets available for sale
For financial assets available for sale, the Group assesses at each reporting date whether there is an objective evidence
that an investment or a group of investments is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, objective evidence would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investment below its cost. ‘Significant’ is to be evaluated against the original cost of
the investment and ‘prolonged’ against the period in which the fair value has been below its original cost. When there is
evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current
fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment previously recognised in the profit or loss – is removed from other
comprehensive income and recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed
through the profit or loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are recognised directly in other comprehensive
income.
In the case of debt instruments classified as available for sale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as
financial assets carried at amortised cost. However, the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative loss measured
as the difference between the amortised cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that investment
previously recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Financial assets available for sale (continued)
Future interest income continues to be accrued based on the reduced carrying amount of the asset, using the rate of
interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. If, in a subsequent
year, the fair value of a debt instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the impairment loss is
reversed through the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the Group first assesses individually an impairment exists individually for
financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If the
Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether
significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively
assesses them for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is,
or continues to be, recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment.
The amount of any impairment loss identified is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses that have not yet been incurred).
The present value of the estimated future cash flows is discounted at the financial assets original effective interest rate.
If a loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Interest income continues to be accrued on the reduced carrying
amount and is accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss.
The interest income is recorded in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income. Loans together with the
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future recovery and all collateral has been
realised or has been transferred to the Group.
If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases or decreases because of an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by
adjusting the allowance account. If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income.
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans,
borrowings and payables, as appropriate. The Group determines the classification of its financial liabilities at initial
recognition. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in case of loans, borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transactions costs.
The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts payable and other liabilities. As at 31 December 2017, the Group did not
have any financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Accounts payable and other liabilities
Liabilities are recognised for amounts the Group obligated to pay in the future for goods or services received, whether
billed by the supplier or not.
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Financial liabilities (continued)
Derecognition
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the consolidated statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that
the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:
· In the principal market for the asset or liability, or
· In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible to by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.
Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as result of a past event, and it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of
the expenditures expected to be incurred to settle the obligation. When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income net of any reimbursement.
Contingencies
Contingent liabilities are not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position. They are disclosed in the
consolidated financial statement unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
Contingent assets are not recognised on the consolidated statement of financial position, but disclosed in the consolidated
financial statement when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
Treasury shares
Own equity instruments which are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation
of the Group’s own equity instruments. Any realised losses are recognised in treasury share reserve or share premium reserve to the extent of the credit balance in that account. Any excess losses are charged to retained earnings then to the
reserves. Gains realised subsequently on the sale of treasury shares are first used to offset any previously recorded losses
in the order of reserves, retained earnings and the treasury shares reserve account. No cash dividends are distributed on
these shares. The issue of bonus shares increases the number of treasury shares proportionately and reduces the average
cost per share without affecting the total cost of treasury shares.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employees’ end of service benefits
The Group provides end of service benefits to all its employees. The entitlement to these benefits is based upon the
employees’ final salary and length of service, subject to the completion of a minimum service period. The expected costs
of these benefits are accrued over the period of employment.
Further, with respect to its national employees, the Group makes contributions to Public Institution for Social Security
calculated as a percentage of the employees’ salaries. The Group’s obligations are limited to these contributions, which
are expensed when due.
Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are recorded at the functional currency rate ruling at the date of the transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rate of
exchange ruling at the reporting date. All differences are taken to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or consolidated statement of comprehensive income is also recognised in other comprehensive income
or consolidated statement of comprehensive income, respectively).
Segment information
A segment is a distinguishable component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it earns revenues
and incurs costs. The operating segments are used by the management of the Group to allocate resources and assess
performance and the reporting is consistent with the internal reports provided to the chief operation decision maker.
Operating segments exhibiting similar economic characteristics, product and services, class of customers where appropriate are aggregated and reported as reportable segments.
3.2

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Group’s consolidated financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability affected
in future periods.
Impairment of financial assets available for sale
The Group treats equity financial assets available for sale as impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The determination of what
is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’ requires considerable judgment.
Classification of investments
Management decides on acquisition of an investment whether it should be classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss or financial assets available for sale.
Useful lives intangible assets
Management of the Group assigns useful lives to intangible assets based on the intended use of assets and the economic lives of those assets. Subsequent changes in circumstances such as prospective utilisation of the assets concerned
could result in the actual useful lives differing from initial estimates.
Impairment of receivables
An estimate of the collectible amount of trade accounts receivable is made when collection of the full amount is no longer probable. For individually significant amounts, this estimation is performed on an individual basis. Amounts which are not individually
significant, but which are past due, are assessed collectively and a provision applied according to the length of time past due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets
A decline in the value of non-financial assets could have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements. Management assesses the impairment of non-financial assets whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Factors that are considered important which could trigger an impairment review include the following:
· significant decline in the market value which would be expected from the passage of time or normal use
· significant changes in the technology and regulatory environments
· evidence from internal reporting which indicates that the economic performance of the asset is, or will be, worse
than expected.
3.3

STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The standards and interpretations those are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date of issuance of the Group’s consolidated financial statements is disclosed below.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
In July 2014, the IASB issued the final version of IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’ that replaces IAS 39 ‘Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’ and all previous versions of IFRS 9. IFRS 9 brings together all three aspects of the
accounting for financial instruments project: classification and measurement, impairment and hedge accounting. IFRS 9
is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, with early application permitted. Except for hedge
accounting, retrospective application is required but providing comparative information is not compulsory. For hedge
accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with some limited exceptions.
The Group plans to adopt the new standard on the required effective date and will not restate comparative information.
Overall, the Group expects no significant impact on its statement of financial position and equity except for the effect of
applying the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9 as discussed below.
Classification and measurement
The new standard requires all financial assets, except equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based on a
combination of the entity’s business model for managing the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow characteristics.
The accounting for financial liabilities will largely be the same as the requirements of IAS 39, except for the treatment of
gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit risk relating to liabilities designated at FVTPL. Such movements will be
presented in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) with no subsequent reclassification to the statement of income, unless
an accounting mismatch in profit or loss would arise.
The Group had reviewed and assessed the Group’s existing financial instruments as at 31 December 2017 based on
the facts and circumstances that existed at that date and concluded the following in regards to their classification and
measurement:
·
·

·

Financial assets representing receivables and cash and cash equivalents that are held within a business model
whose objective is to collect the contractual cash flows will subsequently be measured at amortised cost.
Financial asset representing loan to a related party amounting to KD 30,022,447 which is measured at amortised
cost will instead, be measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The management is in the process of determining its fair value based on reliable financial information and the impact will be assessed once the management
will determine the reliable fair values and will be reflected in interim condensed consolidated financial information for
the period ended 31 March 2018.
Certain financial assets whose fair value could not be determined reliably are classified as financial assets held as
available-for-sale carried at cost less impairment amounting to KD 1,449,198. This investment are intended to be
held for the foreseeable future and the Group will apply the option to present fair value changes in OCI. The management is in the process of determining their fair value based on reliable financial information and the impact will
be assessed once the management will determine the reliable fair values and will be reflected in interim condensed
consolidated financial information for the period ended 31 March 2018.
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STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE (continued)

Classification and measurement (continued)

·

This assessment is based on currently available information and may be subject to changes arising from further reasonable and supportable information being made available to the Group in the financial year 2018, when the Group
will adopt IFRS 9.
The Group expects no significant changes would occur in financial liabilities as the Group classifies all its financial
liabilities at amortised cost under IAS 39 and the same classification is expected to be carried forward under IFRS 9
based on their business model.

Impairment
IFRS 9 requires the Group to record expected credit losses on all its investments, loans and receivables, either on a
12 month or lifetime basis. The Group will apply a simplified approach and record lifetime expected losses on all trade
receivables, which is not expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Hedge accounting
The management does not expect any impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group resulting from
hedge accounting under IFRS 9 as currently, the Group has not entered into any such instruments.
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 was issued in May 2014, and amended in April 2016, and establishes a five-step model to account for revenue
arising from contracts with customers. Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.
The new revenue standard will supersede all current revenue recognition requirements under IFRS. Either a full retrospective application or a modified retrospective application is required for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018. Early adoption is permitted. The Group did not early adopt IFRS 15 and has evaluated that the adoption of the
standard will not have significant impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of leases and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model similar to the accounting
for finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ’low-value’
assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or less). At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and an
asset representing the right to use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). Lessees will
be required to separately recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and the depreciation expense on the rightof-use asset.
Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g., a change in
the lease term, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments). The lessee will generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment
to the right-of-use asset.
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17. Lessors will continue
to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish between two types of leases:
operating and finance leases.
IFRS 16 also requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. Early application is permitted, but not
before an entity applies IFRS 15. A lessee can choose to apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The standard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs. The Group is in the process
of assessing the impact of IFRS 16 on its consolidated financial statements.
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GROUP INFORMATION

Financial information of subsidiaries that have material non-controlling interests is provided below:
Proportion of equity interest held by non-controlling interests:

Name of the company
Royal Aviation Company K.S.C. (Closed) (“RAC”)

Ownership %

Country of
incorporation

Principal activity

2017

2016

Kuwait

Management and services

33.43

33.43

The summarised financial information of the subsidiary is provided below. This information is based on amounts before
inter-company eliminations.
RAC

RAC

2017

2016

KD

KD

2,178,501

1,848,351

Operating costs

(818,060)

(691,098)

Net operating expenses

(455,711)

(467,545)

9,265

58,247

Summarized statement of comprehensive income statement for the year ended 31
December:
Revenues

Other income

──────── ────────
EBITDA
Depreciation and amortization

913,995

747,955

(821,466)

(820,345)

──────── ────────
Profit (loss) for the year

92,529

(72,390)

──────── ────────
Profit (loss) allocated to non-controlling interests

30,932

(24,200)

──────── ────────
Summarized statement of financial position as at 31 December:
RAC

RAC

2017

2016

KD

KD

Non-current assets

5,128,694

5,942,394

Current assets

1,906,112

1,298,993

(44,745)

(30,355)

(637,175)

(949,944)

────────

────────

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities
Total equity
Accumulated balances of non-controlling interests:

6,352,886

6,261,088

═════════

═════════

═════════

═════════

2,123,770

2,093,082
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GROUP INFORMATION (continued)

Summarised cash flow information for year ended 31 December:

Operating cash flows
Investing cash flows
Net increase in bank balances and cash

5

RAC

RAC

2017

2016

KD

KD

455,123

500,613

(7,764)

(25,846)

─────────

─────────

═════════

═════════

447,359

474,767

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit for the year attributable to the equity holders of
the Parent Company by the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year (excluding treasury shares).
The information necessary to calculate basic earnings per share based on the weighted average number of shares
outstanding, less treasury shares, during the year is as follows:
2017

2016

KD

KD

9,644,470

8,442,803

═════════

═════════

Weighted average number of paid up shares

100,000,000

100,000,000

Weighted average number of treasury shares

(4,824,307)

(4,824,307)

─────────

─────────

95,175,693

95,175,693

─────────

─────────

═════════

═════════

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Parent Company

Shares

Weighted average number of shares, less treasury shares,
outstanding during the year
Basic and diluted earnings per share

101.33 fils

Shares

88.71 fils

Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2016, before retroactive adjustment to the number of shares following the bonus issue (Note 16) were 107.52 fils.
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets represent cost incurred on the construction of the Discovery Mall, Sheikh Saa’d Terminal, car park and
commercial complex of Kuwait International Airport in accordance with Built-Own-Transfer (BOT) agreement with the
government of Kuwait and have useful life and amortised as disclosed in Note 3.
2017

2016

KD

KD

41,582,488

41,582,488

24,065

-

──────────

──────────

──────────

──────────

29,510,694

27,155,412

1,871,547

2,355,282

──────────

──────────

──────────

──────────

10,224,312

12,071,794

══════════

══════════

Cost:
As at 1 January
Additions
As at 31 December
Amortisation:
As at 1 January
Charge for the year
As at 31 December
Net carrying amount:
As at 31 December

41,606,553

31,382,241

41,582,488

29,510,694

Included in intangible assets is a fully amortised intangible asset as at 31 December 2017 (2016: KD NIL) that represents
Built-Own-Transfer (BOT) project for the construction of Discovery Mall (the “Mall”). This Mall was built on a leasehold land
from the Touristic Enterprise Company (“TEC”) for an initial period of 10 years which was then extended by seven months
to 28 January 2014. Since there were various delays in receiving leasehold land from the TEC, which resulted in an
adverse effect on the investment term, the Parent Company requested to renew the contract for an additional period and
has subsequently filed a compensation claim. However, TEC has filed a lawsuit requesting Parent Company to withdraw
from the Mall and deliver the Mall back. The First instance court ruled in favor of TEC acknowledging the initial expiration
of the contract. UPAC appealed the judgement which was subsequently transferred to a committee of experts to assess
the overall damages and compensation. UPAC also submitted recourse before the cassation court, which ruled that the
execution judgement should be suspended. UPAC is therefore still handling the management and operation of the Mall
on the basis of the cassation court judgement and cannot assess when these proceedings will come to closure until a
final ruling is made. Accordingly, revenue from the project have been recognised by the Parent Company in statement of
comprehensive income because it is, in all cases, an exclusive right for which the Company is entitled, regardless of the
outcome of the lawsuits filed by both parties.
Included in intangible assets is an amount of KD 5,008,904 (2016: KD 5,804,805) that represents the carrying value
of Built-Own-Transfer (BOT) project for the construction of Sheikh Saa’d Terminal (the “terminal”). This was built on a
leasehold land from the government of the State of Kuwait for 20 years which will expire on 2024. Since September
2013, The Civil Aviation Authority permitted Flydubai, one of the carriers to operate from the terminal. As a result of
this, the management is confident that the carrying amount of the terminal is fully recoverable and no impairment is
considered necessary.
Included in intangible assets is an amount of KD 5,215,408 (2016: KD 6,266,989) that represents the carrying value of
Built-Own-Transfer (BOT) project for the construction of the car park and commercial complex of Kuwait International
Airport. This was built on a leasehold land from the government of the State of Kuwait for 20 years which will expire
on 2023. The management is confident that the carrying amount of the intangible asset is fully recoverable and no
impairment is considered necessary.
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FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE

Unquoted equity securities (Note 13)
Managed portfolios (local bonds)

2017

2016

KD

KD

1,449,198

1,449,198

-    
─────────

1,300,000
─────────

1,449,198
═════════

2,749,198
═════════

Unquoted equity securities and unquoted debt securities in managed portfolios amounting to KD 1,449,198 (2016:
KD 2,749,198) are carried at cost less impairment. Management has performed a review to assess whether impairment
has occurred in these investments. The management is confident that the carrying amount of the financial assets available
for sale is fully recoverable and no impairment is considered necessary.

8

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ASSETS
2017

2016

KD

KD

Rent receivables

1,208,743

920,894

Counter fee receivable

1,720,000

1,000,000

24,455

398,365

Prepayments

517,504

301,635

Advance to suppliers

348,926

340,000

Other receivables

Other assets

127,852

111,440

─────────

─────────

(448,296)

(370,788)

─────────

─────────

═════════

═════════

3,947,480

3,072,334

Less:
Provision against impairment of receivables

3,499,184

Movements in the provision against impairment of rent receivables is as follows:

2,701,546

2017

2016

KD

KD

At beginning of the year

370,788

144,228

Charge for the year

100,927

226,560

(5,934)

-    

(17,485)

-    

────────

─────────

════════

═════════

Reversal during the year
Amounts written off
At end of the year

448,296

370,788

Total provision on accounts receivable and other assets net of reversals for year ended 31 December 2017 is KD 94,993
(2016: KD 226,560)
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ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE AND OTHER ASSETS (continued)

As at 31 December, the ageing of unimpaired rent and other receivables is as follows:
Past due but not impaired

2017
2016

Total

Neither past
due nor
impaired

1 - 30
days

31 – 60
days

61 - 90
days

Over 90
days

KD

KD

KD

KD

KD

KD

2,504,903

-

224,860

206,488

146,884

1,926,671

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

════════

1,948,471

-

217,678

144,307

141,671

1,444,815

Unimpaired receivables are expected, on the basis of past experience, to be fully recoverable. It is not the practice of the
Group to obtain collateral over receivables.

9

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of financial position
consist of the following:
2017

2016

KD

KD

Cash and bank balances

1,888,680

1,877,804

Short term deposits

5,790,406

3,429,230

────────

────────

════════

════════

Cash and cash equivalents

7,679,086

5,307,034

Short term deposits are denominated in KD and carry an effective interest rate range between 1.25% to 1.5% (2016: 1%
to 1.375 %) per annum with maturity less than three months from reporting date.

10

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

a) Share capital
As at 31 December 2017, the Parent Company’s authorised capital is 382,500,000 shares of 100 fils each (2016:
382,500,000 shares of 100 fils each) out of which 100,000,000 shares of 100 fils each (2016: 82,500,000 shares
of 100 fils each) are fully issued and paid in cash.
b) Share premium
The share premium is not available for distribution.
c) Statutory reserve
In accordance with the Companies Law and the Parent Company’s Articles of Association and Memorandum of
Incorporation, the Parent Company has resolved not to increase the statutory reserve above an amount equal to 50%
of its paid up share capital.
Distribution of the reserve is limited to the amount required to enable the payment of a dividend of 5% of paid up share
capital to be made in periods when accumulated profits are not sufficient for the payment of a dividend of that amount.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES (continued)

d) Voluntary reserve
According to the Parent Company’s Articles of Association and Memorandum of Incorporation, 10% of the profit for
the year before Kuwait Foundation for the Advancement of Sciences (KFAS), National Labour Support Tax (NLST),
Zakat and Board of Directors’ remuneration shall be transferred to the voluntary reserve. In 2013, the board of directors
resolved to discontinue the transfer to voluntary reserve.

11

TREASURY SHARES

Number of treasury shares
Percentage of issued shares (%)
Market value (KD)
Cost (KD)

2017

2016

4,824,307
══════════

3,980,000
══════════

2,822,220
══════════

2,666,600
══════════

5%
══════════

1,544,594
══════════

5%
══════════

1,544,594
══════════

Reserves equivalent to the cost of the treasury shares held are not available for distribution.

12

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER LIABILITIES

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Rent received in advance*
Provision for staff leave
Tenant deposits
Other payables

Classified as:
Current liability
Non-current liability

2017
KD

2016
KD

1,242,004
699,040
7,360,149
116,130
2,174,302
201,523
──────────
11,793,148
══════════

1,552,446
569,903
6,426,617
100,365
2,287,278
217,942
──────────
11,154,551
══════════

2017
KD

2016
KD

7,018,257
4,774,891
──────────
11,793,148
══════════

7,670,397
3,484,154
──────────
11,154,551
══════════

* This amount includes a non-current portion for rent received in advance beyond 12 months of the reporting period
amounting to KD 4,774,891 (2016: KD 3,484,154) which represents rent received in advance by the Group from tenants
in accordance with a rental agreements.
The accounts payable and other liabilities balances above are non-interest bearing and are settled throughout the financial year except for rent received in advance as mentioned above.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

These represent transactions with related parties, i.e. major shareholders, associate, directors and key management
personnel of the Group, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing
policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management.
Transactions and balances and with related parties are as follows:

Consolidated statement of comprehensive income :
Revenues

2017

2016

KD

KD

KD

19,427

19,427

-    

(270,545)

(270,545)

(127,033)

(28,553)

(28,553)

(42,689)

42,792

42,792

58,099

2,103,230

2,103,230

1,331,601

Ultimate parent
company Other related parties
KD

2017
KD

2016
KD

Operating costs
General and administrative expenses
Other income
Interest income

Consolidated statement of financial position:
Amounts due from a related party (included in
accounts receivable and other assets)
Amounts due to related parties
(included in accounts payable and other liabilities)
Loan to a related party
Financial assets available for sale (Note 7)

Other related parties

-    

43,878

43,878

10,081

(119,067)
-    
-    

(190,630)
30,022,447
1,449,198

(309,697)
30,022,447
1,449,198

149,009
20,339,286
1,449,198

Amounts due from/to related parties are interest free and are receivable/payable on demand.
Loan to a related party represents amounts advanced by a subsidiary of the Group towards the construction and development of a commercial mall in UAE (“Project”). This amount bears interest of 8.5% (2016: 8.5%) per annum and can
be converted to equity in the Project on completion of construction subject to the Project achieving certain operational
targets. The Group has contributed KD 1,449,198 (2016: KD 1,449,198) in the equity of the Project out of the Group’s
capital commitment in respect of uncalled capital in financial assets available for sale amounting to KD 5,097,830 as at
the reporting date (2016: KD 5,166,695).
Furthermore, the Parent Company has provided bank guarantee of KD Nil (2016: KD 2,148,482) and corporate guarantee of AED Nil (KD Nil) [2016: AED 202 million (KD equivalent to 16.83 million)] to banks on behalf of a related party
related to the Project.
Other related parties include entities under common control.
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Employees’ end of service benefits

2017
KD

2016
KD

227,968
62,846
─────────
290,814
═════════

150,892
7,655
─────────
158,547
═════════
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COMMITMENTS

The Shaikh Saad Terminal, Discovery Mall, car park and commercial complex of Kuwait International Airport (Note 6) are
constructed on a leased land for which an annual lease payment of KD 872,678 (2016: KD 782,203) has been made.
The lease payments for the future periods are as follows:

Within one year
After one year but no later than five years
Later than 5 years

2017

2016

KD

KD

872,678

782,203

3,202,712

2,840,812

335,678

955,406

─────────

─────────

═════════

═════════

4,411,068

4,578,421

The Group has capital commitments in respect of uncalled capital in financial assets available for sale to the Project (Note
13) amounting to AED 61,999,314 (2016: AED 61,999,314) equivalent to KD 5,097,830 (2016: KD 5,166,695).

15

CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had contingent liabilities, amounting to KD 307,290 (2016: KD 2,539,072), in respect
of bank guarantees arising in the ordinary course of business and corporate guarantee of AED Nil million (equivalent to
KD Nil) [2016: AED 202 million (equivalent to KD 16.83 million)] from which it is anticipated that no material liabilities will
arise (Note 13).

16

DIVIDENDS AND BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

During the current year, at the Annual General Assembly (“AGM”) of the shareholders of the Parent Company held on
11 May 2017, the shareholders approved the distribution of bonus shares 17,500,000 shares of 100 fils each (2015: nil)
amounting to KD 1,750,000 (2015: nil) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2016 which have been issued on 22
June 2017. Cash dividends distribution of 86 fils per share amounting to KD 6,752,720 for the year ended 31 December
2015 were approved at the AGM of the shareholders of the Parent Company held on 27 April 2016.
At the Board of Directors meeting held on 22 February 2018, the directors recommended distribution of cash dividend
of 121 fils (2016: Nil fils) per share for the year ended 31 December 2017 and Board of Directors’ remuneration of KD
25,000 (2016: KD 25,000). The proposed dividend, if approved at the AGM by the shareholders, shall be payable to the
shareholders after obtaining the necessary regulatory approvals.
Board of Directors’ remuneration is within the amount permissible under local regulations and is subject to approval by
the annual general assembly of the shareholders of the Parent Company.
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SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of its segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about
resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on operating profit or loss
and is measured consistently with operating profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements. However, taxation is
managed on a Group basis and is not allocated to operating segments.
For management purposes, the Group is organised in two operating segments: i) Investments: consists of investing
surplus funds in investment portfolios. ii) Service operations: consists of managing projects and providing airplane ground
and cleaning services and other service facilities.
		
Investments

Segment revenues

Services operations

Total

2017

2016

2017

2016

2017

2016

KD

KD

KD

KD

KD

KD

2,200,991

1,692,172

14,072,677

13,390,159

16,273,668

15,082,331

═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════
Segment profit
Unallocated Expenses

2,200,991

1,692,172

7,162,281

10,132,161
(456,759)

Profit for the year
Depreciation and amortisation

7,931,170

8,854,453

═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════

  
-    

-    

1,943,415

  
2,407,782

(435,850)

───────── ─────────
9,675,402

8,418,603

═════════ ═════════
1,943,415

2,407,782

═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════

Assets

37,468,051

26,517,714

15,689,756

16,931,981

53,157,807

43,449,695

═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════
Liabilities
Other disclosures:
Capital expenditure

-    

-     12,193,138

11,459,112

12,193,138

11,459,112

═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════
-    

-    

24,065

-    

24,065

-    

═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════ ═════════
Capital expenditure represents additions to intangible assets.

18

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk is inherent in the Group’s activities but it is managed through a process of ongoing identification, measurement and
monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the Group’s continuing
profitability and each individual within the Group is accountable for the risk exposures relating to his or her responsibilities. The Group is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and operational risk. Market risk is subdivided into
interest rate risk, currency risk and equity price risk.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed to credit risk on its cash and cash equivalent, receivables, loan to related
party and managed portfolio.
The Group limits its credit risk with respect to customers/tenants by setting credit limits for individual customers/tenants,
monitoring outstanding receivables, holding rent deposits and limiting transactions with specific counterparties.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 1 customer (2016: 1 customer) that owed the Group KD 1,720,000 (2016: KD
1,000,000) and accounted for approximately 49% (2016: 37%) of accounts receivable and other assets.
Investments are made only with approved counterparties to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate
financial loss through potential counterparty failure. The Group limits its credit risk with regard to bank balances and short
term deposits by dealing with reputable banks.
The table below shows the gross maximum exposure to credit risk across financial assets:
2017

2016

KD

KD

Cash and cash equivalents

7,679,086

5,307,034

Accounts receivable and other assets*

2,504,903

1,948,471

30,022,447

20,339,286

-    
─────────

1,300,000
─────────

40,206,436
═════════

28,894,791
═════════

Loan to a related party
Managed portfolio (local bonds)

*Accounts receivable and other assets exclude prepayments, advance to suppliers and inventory.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will be unable to meet its liabilities when they fall due. Liquidity risk can be caused
by market disruptions or credit downgrades which may cause certain sources of funding to dry up immediately. To guard
against this risk, management has diversified funding sources and assets are managed with liquidity in mind, maintaining
a healthy balance of cash and cash equivalents.
The Group limits its liquidity risk by the maturity profile of financial liabilities ensuring facilities from banks and related
parties are available to ensure adequate liquidity is maintained.
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RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)
The table below summarises the maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities at 31 December based on contractual
undiscounted payment obligations:

2017

Accounts payable and other liabilities*

2016

Accounts payable and other liabilities*

On
demand

Within 3
months

3 – 12
months

Total

KD

KD

KD

KD

69,213
══════════

1,347,010
══════════

3,016,776
══════════

4,432,999
══════════

On
demand

Within 3
months

3 – 12
months

Total

KD

KD

KD

KD

149,009
══════════

2,261,662
══════════

2,317,263
══════════

4,727,934
══════════

*Account payables and other liabilities exclude rent received in advance.
Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the value of an asset will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices, whether those
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual investment or its issuer or factors affecting all investments traded
in the market.
Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of
financial instruments.
The Group has no significant exposure to interest bearing assets or liabilities as at 31 December 2017.
Foreign currency risk
Foreign exchange risk arises when future commercial transactions and recognised assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not the Group’s functional currency. Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign exchange risk
is managed on the basis of limits determined by management and a continuous assessment of current and expected
exchange rate movements. The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates is not material since
its foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities are limited.
Equity price risk
The Group has unquoted debt and equity securities which are carried at cost of KD 1,449,198 (2016: KD 2,749,198)
where the impact of changes in equity prices will only be reflected when the investment is sold or deemed to be impaired,
when the consolidated statement of comprehensive income will be impacted.
Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from systems failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls fail
to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications, or lead to financial
loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but through a control framework and by monitoring and
responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks. Controls include effective segregation of duties,
access, authorisation and reconciliation procedures, staff education and assessment processes.
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value. The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in business conditions. No
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2017 and 31 December 2016. Capital comprises equity attributable to the Parent Company, excluding statutory reserve and measured at KD
33,840,899 as at 31 December 2017 (2016: KD 25,405,343).

20

FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial instruments comprise of financial assets and financial liabilities.
Financial assets consist of financial assets available for sale, accounts receivables and other assets, cash and cash
equivalents and loan to a related party. Financial liabilities consist of accounts payables and other liabilities excluding rent
received in advance. The management assesses that the fair values of financial instruments, with the exception of certain
financial assets available for sale carried at cost (Note 7), and the loan to a related party whose fair value is higher than
the carrying value due to the contractual interest rate that is above the prevailing market rate, are not materially different
from their carrying values.

21

MULTICURRENCY TERM FACILITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Parent Company signed a loan agreement with a local bank for an
amount of KD 50,100,000 to finance the construction and development of a commercial mall in UAE, the Project (Note
13). As at 31 December 2017, these funds have not been withdrawn.
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